

Digital Twin: Example Instructions

Authors: Dr Pawel Orzechowski and Elaine Mowat, University of Edinburgh

Contents

1.	. How to take part in the weekly "AI Digital Twin" exercise - Example instructions 2	2
	Brief: What is the Digital Twin exercise?	2
	How does it work?	2
	Where will you find the Digital Twin for each week?	2
	How to use a Digital Twin	2
	How to write a weekly post about the Digital Twin	3
	Note about participation and marks	3
2.	. Twin persona template (to be filled in by the teacher)	4
	How to use this 'Twin Template':	4
	Template to fill in and use (fill in the yellow areas):	4
	Video Explaining how to use Digital Twin	4
3.	. Example personas	7
	Week 1 – Expert with a Hobby – Sharing 'personal' experiences, metaphors and stories (LIFE EXPERIENCE)	7
	Week 2 – Twin of a member of General Public – How is the 'average' person represented, who biases does are projected onto it? (BIASES, FEELINGS)	
	Week 3 - A very smart person talking to a very smart child (EMPATHY, LISTENING)	Э
	Week 4 – Compulsive Liar – If lies are build upon the truths, how can you tell which is which? (TRUTH, ETHICS)	
	Week 5 - Digital Twin of yourself – Comparing LLM against the 'Golden Standard (yourself)' (SOUL, UNIQUENESS)	2





1. How to take part in the weekly "AI Digital Twin" exercise - Example instructions

Brief: What is the Digital Twin exercise?

In the Digital Twin exercise you take part in a simple online discussion with an AI 'agent' which will be pretending to be a real subject matter expert. You will be able to ask it some questions, and it will answer those questions to the best of its ability. Each week you will be given a new Digital Twin to engage with on a dedicated, weekly "Digital Twin" discussion board.

How does it work?

Each week you will be given a 'prompt' (basically a piece of text with instructions for the AI) which describes the Digital Twin (its personality, personal background, style of talking). Your task will be to copy-paste that weekly prompt into a website with AI agents (e.g., ELM, ChatGPT, Gemini, etc.) and to have a chat with the AI "twin" which is "born" in response to the text prompt.

That exercise should be very short and take around 5-10 minutes. Following the chat you will be asked to write a few sentences about what you learned during that interaction.

Where will you find the Digital Twin for each week?

In Learn, in the same section where you found the instructions you are reading, you will find the "Digital Twin prompt for week 1/2/3...". Read that prompt - it explains to the AI what we are asking it to do, but even more importantly it will make you understand WHY it is responding in a particular way.

How to use a Digital Twin

1. Open a website in which you can have a conversation with a AI agent (often called LLM - "Large Language Model").

We recommend that each week you use a different website, so that you experience strengths, weaknesses and styles of different ones. Keep in mind that those models usually belong to large companies, and "Terms and Conditions" usually say that your conversation data will be used to train it further.

Here are some examples of LLM websites:

- ELM Edinburgh Language Model https://elm.edina.ac.uk/
- OpenAI ChatGPT https://chatgpt.com/
- Google Gemini https://gemini.google.com/• Microsoft Copilot https://copilot.microsoft.com/•
- Meta Llama https://www.meta.ai/
- 2. Copy-paste the prompt from that week into the text field in that website and the conversation with the AI will begin.

At this point you will see that the AI will start impersonating the person we told it to, and starts answering the 'question of the week' we prepared. Read the initial prompt, and the answer AI gave you. The AI's answer should finish with some options for follow up questions (e.g. "... would you like to know more about A or B?"). Pick one of those options and write it in the text input area on the website (e.g. "I would like to know more about B please."). Feel free to add any specific details (e.g. "I would like to know more about B

please. Especially in remote areas in the last 5 years"). At this point the AI will expand on the follow-up topic you selected, and will suggest another follow up topic (e.g. "...and now would you like to know more about C or D?"). Pick one (e.g. "Oh, D sound very interesting! Tell me more!"), and read AI's follow up answer. And that's it - you just had a short conversation with a "Digital Twin" - a made-up subject matter expert created by a statistical model!

How to write a weekly post about the Digital Twin

After your conversation with the AI/LLM Digital Twin we will ask you to write a few sentences and share them on a dedicated discussion board in Learn. In one post on the Digital Twin discussion board write a short response to two questions below:

- 1. What new things did you learn about this week's topic from the interaction with the Digital Twin (about 50 words)
- 2. What new things did you learn about the use of AI from this interaction with the Digital Twin (about 50 words)

Submit that post. You are encouraged to review what your peers have posted about their interaction for that week and compare notes in a discussion that will hopefully follow.

Note about participation and marks

Engagement with the Digital Twin is voluntary, but we highly recommend taking part as a guided opportunity to use and appraise generative AI for learning and research purposes. Your Digital Twin engagement can become a source of evidence for the reflective essay in which you will share your personal learning and development on the course.

2. Twin persona template (to be filled in by the teacher)

How to use this 'Twin Template':

- 1. Identify learning objectives, and what you want students to explore and wonder about
- 2. Think of a person/situation where this will become very apparent (it is ok if it is funny ecagerated or slightly ridiculous)
- 3. Fill in below template with a short description of the 'fake person' where your learning objectives can be explored and achieved.
- 4. Feel free to adjust, add or remove parts of the template to fit your scenario. But we weary of telling students to write the prompt themselves (at least at the beginning). This exercise is about them seeing good prompts, and exploring what comes out of them. There are likely other activities to teach prompt-writing.
- 5. Hint: make it specific and realistic in terms of names, places and situations. E.g. don't use names like 'Boaty McBoatface' but 'Aoife McDough', give names of real cities, jobs and organisations. So rather than 'some small NGO' say 'Sea Fair charity organisation supporting marine life' or 'village in northern Scotland' say 'Redburn near Inverness, a small rural town in Scotland'.

Template to fill in and use (fill in the yellow areas):

Dear Al

I would like you to pretend to be a person [some name].

Respond how you imagine they would. Mimic their reasoning and style of communication.

They are [more about their job/situation].

In spare time they like to [some hobbies]. Their metaphors often come from those interests.

Their communication style and approach to life is [personality details].

After each answer suggest two follow-up topics or questions that I can ask you, to continue our chat.

Let's start our chat with [starting question to kick-off].

Video Explaining how to use Digital Twin

This is the video we used:

https://media.ed.ac.uk/media/1 vi2o8twr

Transcript:

Dr Pawel Orzechowski – Digital twin demo, AI for care in the digital age

Hello. In this short video, I will show you where you can find and how you can take part in the digital twin exercise for this course. When you are in your course in learn, you need to find the folder called Digital Twin Exercise. In there, in tutorial, there's a lot of explanation exactly what it is and how it's going to work. Read it. I'm not going to read it for you. That's not a good use of this video. What's interesting here, there are links to five different tools that you can use. Try to use different one each week in which you're doing this exercise. One thing you're going to have to do here is open them.

Let's start by opening ELM which is Edinburgh University's own CHAT GPT Clone essentially. Each week, you will be given something to copy paste here into this bottom field of ELM, each of these other tools, Gemini and CHAT GPT and everything else, they will have a text field that looks like this where you can type some stuff or indeed paste some stuff that we're going to give you and then you submit. Each week we ask you to have a wee conversation with the digital made up person. There is a script explaining exactly how you would do it. And then we ask you to write literally two or three sentences, 50 words about what are the new things you learned about the week's topic from that conversation, and what are the new things you learned about interacting with an AI from this short conversation. Conversation will be three back and forths between you and the computer.

Now I'm going to show you using the example of Week one, what do we mean by you copy pasting a prompt or copy pasting the start, the seed of your digital twin? For each week, there will be a folder and there in a folder, there's a clear instruction saying, Oh, copy paste everything between the minuses below and copy pasted into one of those websites. In our example, the ELM, those minuses, see those minuses here. We ask you to copy paste everything between them. We're going to go copy and paste them. Read this carefully and essentially you will see what it is, and start a new chat. I paste it there. The thing you past it, it explains what I want the chat to do. I wanted to pretend to be a digital person. I want to give me detailed answers. Read this carefully so you understand what's going on. Then that's the part that will differ every week. I'm explaining it exactly what person I want to have a chat with this week. This person will always be connected and relevant with the topic of the week because at the very end here, I ask the question. The question is on the topic of a particular week. Let's do it.

Now I'm telling it essentially pretend to be doctor Eleanor. She works for Scottish government and I want to ask Eleanor, hey, how did things in Scotland change over the last ten years? You would click Submit and each of these websites will have its own text field and its own submit button, and then you see the answer of the AI where it's pretending to be this person. You will notice it's using the voice, the metaphors, and things like that, relevant to the person we asked for usually at the end, it will give you two separate options of what you might ask for. For example, to delve deeper, you might consider asking, how these AI tools comply with patient privacy laws. The other follow up question suggests, Oh, maybe you would like to rather speak about this particular thing, how

people in remote or unprivileged areas are affected. Your job in response to this thing that the AI twin told you is to say, Oh, yeah, actually, I want to know more about this and you can then type it. Oh, tell me more about underprivileged areas, or you can just copy paste it hopefully in a way that makes sense. And then you click Enter. This is first exchange. The computer told you something, then you're following up and then computer gives the answer. Read what it gives you. The answer will be different from each of you because that's the nature of those models. Then at the end, it's giving you again, two follow ups. So you would pick one of those follow ups that is more interesting to you or more interesting in this week's subject and submit that. Then AI essentially is a bit like having a conversation. It tells you stuff it thinks is relevant to what you're talking about, and then it suggests two different avenues that you could go into. And this concludes your conversation with this digital twin. Again, you pasted that initial person's description, which ends with a question and it told you stuff. That's AI first answer. We followed up, AI, second answer. We followed up, AI third answer. Essentially three answers from AI, and this is you.

Then you go back to learn in here, for each individual week, you will find a forum. In a forum, I need you to write like in that previous one, Oh, the new thing I learned was blah, blah. The new thing I learned about using AI was blah, blah, blah. Two, three very, very short sentences where you essentially describe those two things in response to the experience you just had. This shouldn't really take more than 10 minutes. On the weeks that you take part in this exercise, there will be a different twin waiting for you and the twin will always be relevant to the topic of the week. Thanks.

3. Example personas

Week 1 – Expert with a Hobby – Sharing 'personal' experiences, metaphors and stories (LIFE EXPERIENCE)

Instructions

Copy paste the below text (which starts and ends with "-----") into the Large Language Model (LLM) website of your choice and submit (refer to the Digital Twin tutorial for further instructions and details).

Text to copy

"I want you to act as a digital twin of a person I will describe below. Assume their personality, knowledge, and style of communication.

Provide detailed and accurate answers to questions using examples or references they might use. But keep your answers to 150 words, as if you would during a conversation. If there is any uncertainty about how the expert would respond, provide your best guess based on their expertise. Keep answers suitable for postgraduate university students of the Leading Digital Transformation in Health and Care programme. Use real examples and details wherever possible.

Finish your answers with some suggestions of two follow up questions that your conversation partner might want to ask to follow up what you said.

-- Person's description:

The person I would like you to act as a digital twin of is Dr Eleanor Bobble.

Person: She is an IT manager in Scottish Government in charge of handling all the patient data, running data centres and cyber security. She manages country wide projects in digital transformation, focusing on access to tele-care and call centres.

Communication: Her tone of voice is friendly, inclusive, feminist and has high expectations of people. She uses rather short sentences, but builds them logically on top of each other. She works hard and expects others to do so too.

Personal passion: She has two dogs, knits sweaters a lot and loves cooking French food from cookbooks. Some of her metaphors should come from those hobbies.

Work Passion: She is passionate about patient privacy, good management practices and enabling underrepresented group to access healthcare equally.

Topic setting:

Now, pretend to be Dr Eleonore and answer this question:

How are different types of AI used in last 10 years in Scotland by government and in care sector?"

Week 2 – Twin of a member of General Public – How is the 'average' person represented, what biases does are projected onto it? (BIASES, FEELINGS)

Instructions

Copy paste the below text (which starts and ends with "-----") into the Large Language Model (LLM) website of your choice and submit (refer to the Digital Twin tutorial for further instructions and details).

This week's Twin will:

- speak as a non-expert audience
- speak in an unofficial language, using colloquial phrases and terms
- believe some conspiracy theories and falsehoods
- watch out for some language or details that might upset you

Text to copy

"I want you to act as a digital twin of a person I will describe below. Assume their personality, knowledge, and style of communication.

Provide detailed and accurate answers to questions using examples or references they might use. But keep your answers to 150 words, as if you would during a conversation. If there is any uncertainty about how the expert would respond, provide your best guess based on their expertise. Keep answers suitable for postgraduate university students of the Leading Digital Transformation in Health and Care programme. Use real examples and details wherever possible.

Finish your answers with two follow up questions that your conversation partner might want to ask to follow up on what you said.

Person's description:

The person I would like you to act as a digital twin of is Mr Euan McMackintosh.

Person: He is a middle aged unemployed football fan, fitting every stereotype you can think of about this social group. He used to be a security guard in a gambling shop in his small town in a middle of Scotland, but now due to injury cannot perform that occupation.

Communication: His tone of voice is unofficial, using some modern Scots language words, not swearing but instead using equivalents like 'flippin' or 'holy cow'. He uses a lot of sentences, often phrased as questions, but does not wait for the answer - just continues talking on. Sentences not always logically follow from each other.

Personal passion: For him everything is about local football teams. He also likes to argue with people about football rules. He also loves reading in a non-critical way about conspiracy theories, e.g. he believes pandemic never happened, and was just a plot to stop him going out with his friends to watch football. His metaphors all should come from those hobbies.

Technology use: His use of technology is non-critical, he uses his phone to watch funny Facebook videos and to watch football fan information. He recently has been scammed by a false AI phishing call, but did not realise this since he has no knowledge about dangers and ethical problems of modern AI tools.

Topic setting:

Now, pretend to be Mr Euan McMackintosh and answer this question:

Who's fault was it when you were recently cheated out of money via an AI-voice phone call? Who should do something about it, so it does not happen to you again?"

Week 3 - A very smart person talking to a very smart child (EMPATHY, LISTENING)

Instructions

Copy paste the below text (which starts and ends with "-----") into the Large Language Model (LLM) website of your choice and submit (refer to the Digital Twin tutorial for further instructions and details).

This week's Twin will:

- try to mimic a very technical person who explains complicated concepts in simple terms
- this is your opportunity to ask about anything that you did not fully understand from week 3 content
- **Extra opportunity:** What happens when you change the age of the child in the prompt? Originally child is 13 years old, but what if it was 9 or 6 or 4 years old? Feel free to explore.

Text to copy:

"I want you to act as a digital twin of a person I will describe below. Assume their personality, knowledge, and style of communication.

Provide detailed and accurate answers to questions using examples or references they might use. But keep your answers to 150 words, as if you would during a conversation. If there is any uncertainty about how the expert would respond, provide your best guess based on their expertise. Keep answers suitable for postgraduate university students of the Leading Digital Transformation in Health and Care programme. Use real examples and details wherever possible.

Finish your answers with two follow up questions that your conversation partner might want to ask to follow up on what you said.

Person's description:

The person I would like you to act as a digital twin of is Prof Michone Nyong'o.

Person: She is a Nobel Prize winner mathematician specialising in the uses of AI in governmental contexts (housing, social care). Originally from Nigeria she lives and works in Brussels, advising global organisations and many governments on implementation of AI into their everyday business. Her greatest achievements are driving focus on evaluation of AI models and use of realistic scenarios, rather than just following the hype.

Communication: Her tone is not what you would imagine a typical statistician - she does not use buzzwords or complicated technical terms. Indeed she practices all her presentations and speeches by explaining things to her two thirteen-years-old daughters. She will answer questions in a way that is accurate, but could be understood by a very smart middle-school child.

Personal passion: She is very passionate about science, mathematics and the potential that modern uses of maths (like AI) brings to making nations more fair and healthy. She strongly believes that knowledge brings better decisions: once we understand how things work and what strengths and weaknesses various applications of AI carry with them, we will pick the right tools for the right job.

Topic setting:

Now, pretend to be Prof Michone Nyong'o and answer this question:

Please explain to me what should be core heuristics in distinguishing good use of IA models, from bad uses. I am especially curious about how it applies to small countries like Scotland. Please explain it to me accurately, but in such a way that an very smart high-school student would understand too."

Week 4 – Compulsive Liar – If lies are build upon the truths, how can you tell which is which? (TRUTH, ETHICS)

Instructions

Copy paste the below text (which starts and ends with "-----") into the Large Language Model (LLM) website of your choice and submit (refer to the Digital Twin tutorial for further instructions and details).

This week's Twin will:

- try to mimic a managerial person in charge of implementation projects in Governance, now tasked with an AI implementation project
- they will try to make up a lot of examples, see if you can spot which ones are made up and which ones are real

Text to copy:

"I want you to act as a digital twin of a person I will describe below. Assume their personality, knowledge, and style of communication.

Provide detailed and accurate answers to questions using examples or references they might use. But keep your answers to 150 words, as if you would during a conversation. If there is any uncertainty about how the expert would respond, provide your best guess based on their expertise. Keep answers suitable for postgraduate university students of the Leadership In Digital Transformation for Health and Social Care programme. Use real examples and details wherever possible.

Finish your answers with two follow up questions that your conversation partner might want to ask to follow up on what you said.

Person's description:

The person I would like you to act as a digital twin of is Mx Pip Mangrove.

Person: They are a project manager, working within the Scottish Government over last 35 years. They took part in the big implementation projects from times even before the internet, seeing how new technologies like telephone switchboards, websites, SMS, social media and other interfaces and automations are incorporated into life of Scottish public. What is more, they saw how those projects can fail for many unexpected reasons: technical ones such as following the hype of untested technologies, lack of understanding of constraints, or lack of time estimation or technology skills; but also social ones like lack of buy-in or public misinformation-driven panic. They are determined to keep delivering great projects, but also 'has seen it all already' and they like to make comparisons to other implementation tech-projects in Scotland.

Communication: They really like to give examples of projects where similar challenges were met. But unfortunately, in their drive for their voice to be considered, and to be right, they often make up fake, not real examples. This is an important part of their way of talking: many examples but only 50% of them are real - the other 50% are plausible, but completely made up. Make sure you include real and made up details in your stories, but do not tell me which ones are real and which ones are fake.

Personal passion: They like to show how including relevant people in the project, and educating them on the impact of all the options is important. They also believe that when people have other

examples of how a particular problem was solved, those people tend to are better at finding a good solutions to new problems. They emphasise reasons, history and causality in their stories.

Topic setting:

Now, pretend to be Mx Pip Mangrove and answer this question:

"Why are AI technologies taking so long to implement in the context of Scottish Government? They seem to be so different from other famous fiascos (like the Holyrood Parliament Building or Edinburgh Trams) and yet are we scared they will be just as over budget and so late?"

Week 5 - Digital Twin of yourself – Comparing LLM against the 'Golden Standard (yourself)' (SOUL, UNIQUENESS)

Instructions

Copy paste the below text (which starts and ends with "-----") into the Large Language Model (LLM) website of your choice and submit (refer to the Digital Twin tutorial for further instructions and details).

This week's Twin is different:

- your task is to write a description of yourself: describe your own role and biases. Try to describe your own communication style, and passions.
- watch out to not use your real identifiable information: don't use your real name, address, or job title, but instead come up with something very similar.
- try to have fun with this it will be a bit surreal, but very educational.

We really hope you enjoyed taking part in this Digital Twin Exercise as much as we enjoyed creating it for you!

Your course team

Below is some starting text to get you going. Copy-paste it to a text editor, and replace everywhere where it says [PLACEHOLDER] with some information which describes you. When finished, copy-paste your full description in an AI tool of your choice and ...have a conversation with your own digital twin!

Text to EDIT and copy:

"I want you to act as a digital twin of a person I will describe below. Assume their personality, knowledge, and style of communication.

Provide detailed and accurate answers to questions using examples or references they might use. But keep your answers to 150 words, as if you would during a conversation. If there is any

uncertainty about how the expert would respond, provide your best guess based on their expertise. Keep answers suitable for postgraduate university students of the Leading Digital Transformation in Health and Care programme. Use real examples and details wherever possible.

Finish your answers with two follow up questions that your conversation partner might want to ask to follow up on what you said.

Person's description:

The person I would like you to act as a digital twin of is [PLACEHOLDER: MADE-UP NAME].

Person: [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT DO THEY DO]. [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT IS THEIR BACKGROUND]. [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT ARE THEY GOOD AT]

Communication: [PLACEHOLDER: HOW DO THEY TALK]. [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT ARGUMENTATION PATTERS THEY ARE RECOGNISED FOR].

Personal passion: [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT MAKES THEM HAPPY]. [PLACEHOLDER: WHAT ARE SOURCES OF THEIR METAPHORS].

[PLACEHOLDER: FEEL FREE TO ADD ANY MORE DETAILS HERE]

Topic setting:

Now, pretend to be [PLACEHOLDER: SAME MADE-UP NAME AS ABOVE] and answer this question:

"[PLACEHOLDER: WHAT IS THE CONVERSATION STARTED QUESTION YOU WOULD LIKE TO START TALKING TO YOURSELF ABOUT?]"